SEPORT DOCUMENTATION PAGE .		Form Approved OMB No. 0704-0188	
AD-A244 49		information. Send comments regar adquarters Services, Directorate for	viewing instructions, searching existing data sources, rding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this information Operations and Reports, 1215 Jefferson ect (0704-0188), Wasnington, DC 20503.
	PORT DATE 20 June 1991	3. REPORT TYPE AND Final Report	D DATES COVERED 4/20/1988 - 4/19/1991
Spectroscopy of React in Nitramine Decompos	ion Intermediates ition and Combustion	DTIC	5. FUNDING NUMBERS Proposal 25664-CH (MIPR 126-88 117-89
5. AUTHOR(S) Marilyn E. Jacox	S	JAN 0 9 1992	120-90)
7. PERFORMING ORGANIZATION NA	AME(S) AND ADDRESS(ES)		8. PERFORMING ORGANIZATION REPORT NUMBER
Molecular Physics Div National Institute of Gaithersburg, Marylan	Standards and Techno	ology	
9. SPONSORING / MONITORING AGE		5)	10. SPONSORING / MONITORING AGENCY REPORT NUMBER
U. S. Army Research C P. O. Box 12211	office		
Research Triangle Par	k, NC 27709-2211		AR0 25664.11-CH
The view, opinions and author(s) and should	nd/or findings contai	ned in this report an official Depart	rt are those of the rtment of the Army
position, policy, or 12a. DISTRIBUTION/AVAILABILITY	decision, unless so	designated by oth	ner documentation. 12b. DISTRIBUTION CODE
position, policy, or 12a. DISTRIBUTION/AVAILABILITY Approved for public r	decision, unless so STATEMENT release; distribution	designated by oth	ner documentation.
position, policy, or 12a. DISTRIBUTION/AVAILABILITY S Approved for public s 13. ABSTRACT (Maximum 200 word The infrared spectra of expected to be importan obtained in solid neor spectral detection of for study are importan processes involving ca monomethylnitramine (M nitramine decomposition obtained using a manif pressure materials. S proposed by Melius for tion of matrix-isolate	decision, unless so STATEMENT release; distribution s) of a number of free ra- nat in nitramine decom- nat in nitramine decom- dimer ions in a non- nat in the lower ionosp arbon- and nitrogen-co MN) as a model compou- on. The infrared spec fold designed for math- Supporting evidence was a water-catalyzed nitra- ed MMN was studied. He cage recombination to	designated by oth unlimited. adicals and molece mposition and com studies resulted interactive envir ohere and in comb ohere and in comb ohtaining materia and for elucidati ctrum of MMN isol cix isolation sam as obtained for a camine decomposit Evidence was obta form the nitrite	ular ions which are bustion have been in the first infrared onment. The ions chosen ustion and high energy ls. Other studies used ng the chemistry of ated in solid neon was pling of low vapor mechanism recently ion. The photodecomposi- ined supporting initial e in a solid environment.
position, policy, or 12a. DISTRIBUTION/AVAILABILITY : Approved for public : 13. ABSTRACT (Maximum 200 word) The infrared spectra c expected to be importan obtained in solid neor spectral detection of for study are importan processes involving ca monomethylnitramine (M nitramine decompositic obtained using a manif pressure materials. S proposed by Melius for tion of matrix-isolate detachment of NO ₂ and infr Infrared and near infr	decision, unless so STATEMENT release; distribution s) of a number of free ra- ant in nitramine decom a. The molecular ion dimer ions in a non-ion in the lower ionosp arbon- and nitrogen-co SMN) as a model compon on. The infrared spect cold designed for math Supporting evidence was a water-catalyzed nitron a dMMN was studied. If cage recombination to cared studies of other cals: infrared spectr	designated by oth unlimited. adicals and molecu- mposition and com- studies resulted interactive envir- phere and in comb- ontaining materia and for elucidati ctrum of MMN isol- cix isolation sam as obtained for a ramine decomposit Evidence was obtai form the nitrite of free radicals at um; matrix isolat	ular ions which are bustion have been in the first infrared onment. The ions chosen ustion and high energy ls. Other studies used ng the chemistry of ated in solid neon was pling of low vapor mechanism recently ion. The photodecomposi- ined supporting initial e in a solid environment. re briefly described.
position, policy, or 12a. DISTRIBUTION/AVAILABILITY S Approved for public s 13. ABSTRACT (Maximum 200 word The infrared spectra of expected to be importan obtained in solid neor spectral detection of for study are importan processes involving ca monomethylnitramine (M nitramine decomposition obtained using a manif pressure materials. S proposed by Melius for tion of matrix-isolated detachment of NO ₂ and	decision, unless so STATEMENT release; distribution s) of a number of free ra- ant in nitramine decom- dimer ions in a non-i- tin the lower ionosp arbon- and nitrogen-co SMN) as a model compon- but in the lower ionosp arbon- and nitrogen-co SMN) as a model compon- but of the infrared spect- cold designed for math Supporting evidence was to water-catalyzed nitro- ad MMN was studied. If cage recombination to cared studies of other cared studies of other cals; infrared spectr ethylnitramine: near	designated by oth unlimited. adicals and molecu- mposition and com- studies resulted interactive envir- phere and in comb- ontaining materia and for elucidati ctrum of MMN isol- cix isolation sam as obtained for a ramine decomposit Evidence was obtained form the nitrite of free radicals at um; matrix isolat	ular ions which are bustion have been in the first infrared onment. The ions chosen ustion and high energy ls. Other studies used ng the chemistry of ated in solid neon was pling of low vapor mechanism recently ion. The photodecomposi- ined supporting initial e in a solid environment. re briefly described.
position, policy, or 12a. DISTRIBUTION/AVAILABILITY : Approved for public : 13. ABSTRACT (Maximum 200 word The infrared spectra of expected to be importand obtained in solid neor spectral detection of for study are importand processes involving can monomethylnitramine (Maximum 200 word) nitramine decomposition obtained using a manife pressure materials. So proposed by Melius for tion of matrix-isolated detachment of NO ₂ and Infrared and near infr 14. SUBJECT TERMS dimer ions; free radid molecular ions; monomic photodecomposition; wo	decision, unless so STATEMENT release; distribution s) of a number of free ra- ant in nitramine decom- dimer ions in a non-i- tin the lower ionosp arbon- and nitrogen-co SMN) as a model compon- but in the lower ionosp arbon- and nitrogen-co SMN) as a model compon- but of the infrared spect- cold designed for math Supporting evidence was to water-catalyzed nitro- ad MMN was studied. If cage recombination to cared studies of other cared studies of other cals; infrared spectr ethylnitramine: near	designated by oth unlimited. adicals and molecu- mposition and com- studies resulted interactive envir- phere and in comb- ontaining materia and for elucidati ctrum of MMN isol- cix isolation sam as obtained for a ramine decomposit Evidence was obtained form the nitrite of free radicals at um; matrix isolat	Alter documentation. 12b. DISTRIBUTION CODE Ular ions which are bustion have been in the first infrared onment. The ions chosen ustion and high energy 1s. Other studies used ing the chemistry of ated in solid neon was pling of low vapor mechanism recently ion. The photodecomposi- ined supporting initial e in a solid environment. re briefly described. 15. NUMBER OF PAGES 16. PRICE CODE

SPECTROSCOPY OF REACTION INTERMEDIATES

IN NITRAMINE DECOMPOSITION AND COMBUSTION

Final Report

Marilyn E. Jacox

20 June 1991

U. S. Army Research Office

Proposal 25664-CH

(MIPR 126-88; 117-89; 120-90)

Molecular Physics Division National Institute of Standards and Technology Gaithersburg, Maryland 20899

Approved for public release; distribution unlimited.



Accesion For
NTIS CRA&I U
DING TAB
U a monned
Justification
By Dist.ibution/
Availability Coves
Dist Avail and for Special



92 1 8 133

The view, opinions, and/or findings contained in this report are those of the author and should not be construed as an official Department of the Army position, policy, or decision, unless so designated by other documentation.

Table of Contents

Scientific Objectives	
Scientific Accomplishments	
Stabilization and Spectra of Molecular Ions	
Test of the Technique	5
Atmospheric Ions	5
Nitrogen Oxide Ions	7
Ions Important in Combustion	9
Photodecomposition of Monomethylnitramine	10
Other Studies	15
Reaction of H Atoms with N ₂ O	16
Spectrum of HCC	16
Vibrational and Electronic Energy Level Data	17
Publications	18
Participants in ARO Research	19
References	19

Scientific Objectives

The research described in this report has as its ultimate objective the improvement of our understanding of the early stages of the decomposition and combustion of energetic materials, in order to promote efficient use of these materials and to aid in the design of systems which will minimize the hazards associated with handling them. Heretofore, little has been known about the properties of the molecular fragments which are produced in the early stages of energetic molecule decomposition. Many of these species are free radicals, which are highly reactive. This reactivity implies both that they are carriers of important chemical processes and that, except for the very short time interval after the initiation of the chemical process, their concentrations are small. Their detection in gas-phase reaction systems requires sophisticated observation techniques, often involving the use of lasers. Molecular ions, which are even more highly reactive, may be formed through solid-state interactions in the energetic material or through chemiionization processes during its combustion. The reactions of these transient molecules lead to the release of energy and to the formation of stable, readily detected final products.

Spectroscopy is an especially useful tool for studying molecular reaction intermediates. It is a sensitive, specific technique which provides a positive identification of molecular species. Analysis of the spectral data provides information on the structure and chemical bonding properties of the molecule. Once the molecular energy levels are known, it becomes possible to develop laser diagnostics which permit remote sensing of chemical reaction systems with both spatial and temporal resolution.

The studies described in this report apply the matrix isolation technique to obtain survey spectra, primarily in the infrared region, for free radicals and molecular ions which are expected to be important in the decomposition and combustion of energetic materials. A dilute solid solution of the species of interest is prepared using argon or neon as the solvent, or matrix, and a temperature sufficiently low that, although at least limited atomic diffusion is still possible, molecular diffusion does not occur. For covalently bonded species isolated in either of these two materials, the vibrational fundamentals and the band origins of electronic transitions involving the valence electrons typically are shifted by less than about 1% from the corresponding gasphase values.¹⁻³ Free radicals are stabilized by ultraviolet or vacuum ultraviolet photolysis of a precursor molecule or are trapped among the products of the interaction of species such as H atoms or electronically excited argon atoms, produced in a low-power microwave discharge, with the molecule of interest. This report includes a summary of pioneering studies of the use of electronically excited neon atoms as an ionization source for study of the infrared spectra of small molecular cations which are potentially important in atmospheric and combustion systems. Molecular anions, formed by capture of the resulting electrons, are also detected and studied. In certain systems, photodecomposition products trapped in adjacent sites in the solid may undergo further reaction, yielding information on the early stages of reactions which may occur in solid energetic materials or in their reactions at relatively high pressures. Studies of the threshold and products of photodecomposition of the initially-formed free radicals and molecular ions provide further information on the range of stability of these species.

Scientific Accomplishments

A. Stabilization and Spectra of Molecular Ions

Photoionization and Penning ionization by excited argon atoms, which provide an 11.5-11.8 eV energy source, has for some time been used to obtain sufficient concentrations of molecular ions for infrared and ultraviolet detection in matrix isolation experiments.^{4,5} However, this ionization source is most useful for molecules containing chlorine or the heavier halogens and for aromatic molecules, which have relatively low ionization potentials. Most simple molecules composed of the elements carbon, hydrogen, oxygen and nitrogen have their first ionization potentials above about 12 eV. In contrast, the first excited energy levels of neon lie between 16.6 and 16.8 eV, sufficiently high to ionize virtually any molecule. Photoionization and Penning ionization by excited neon atoms has been used together with matrix isolation sampling by Knight and co-workers⁶ for the electron spin resonance detection of a variety of molecular ions. Because electron spin resonance is a much more sensitive detection technique than is infrared spectroscopy, when the present studies were begun it was uncertain whether a sufficient concentration of molecular ions could be stabilized for infrared detection.

Experiments using excited neon atoms require the use of a neon matrix at a temperature approaching 4 K. Although the technical difficulties associated with these experiments are somewhat greater than those for heavier matrix materials, the neon matrix offers several important advantages. Matrix shifts in neon are generally smaller than in any other material.¹ The exceptionally low polarizability of neon implies a relatively small interaction with ions. Moreover, the optical scattering of neon is much less than that of other commonly used matrix materials, with concomitant improvement in the optical quality of the matrix deposits.

4

1. Test of the Technique

Because CO₂ has a relatively high first ionization potential, 13.77 eV, and because the position of the band center of the ν_3 fundamental of ground-state CO₂⁺ had been determined in the gas phase,⁷ CO₂ was chosen for a test of the application of excited neon atoms for the infrared detection of matrix-isolated molecular ions. An infrared absorption appeared⁸ only 1.4 cm⁻¹ from the gas-phase CO₂⁺ ν_3 absorption. The shift in this absorption on carbon-13 and on oxygen-18 substitution of the CO₂ agreed with the calculated shift in ν_3 of linear CO₂⁺. Another absorption appeared in this experimental system at 1658.3 cm⁻¹. Isotopic substitution studies were consistent with its assignment to ν_3 of CO₂⁻, which has a valence angle of approximately 135°. This absorption was substantially shifted from the absorption pattern near 1600 cm⁻¹ which had previously been assigned⁹⁻¹⁵ to ν_3 of CO₂⁻ in the M⁺CO₂⁻ complex, formed by the interaction of an alkali metal with CO₂ in an argon matrix.

2. Atmospheric Ions

With the demonstration that infrared absorptions of molecular ions could be detected using this discharge sampling configuration, it became necessary to determine the absorption pattern of other molecular ions which might be formed as a result of residual atmospheric gases in the sample or of small leaks in the system. These ions are important in a wide variety of systems, including not only the lower ionosphere but also high energy processes.

 Q_4^+ and Q_4^- . The introduction of a small concentration of oxygen into the system led to the appearance of several prominent infrared absorptions which have been assigned¹⁶ to Q_4^+ and to Q_4^- . These experiments provided important information regarding the characteristics of the discharge configuration. Dissociation of Q_2 played only a minor role, and isotopic randomization of the products in a study of a Ne:¹⁶O₂:¹⁸O₂ = 200:1:1 sample did not occur, indicating that the oxygen did not backstream into the discharge region. The study of this Ne:¹⁶O₂:¹⁸O₂ sample also required that the two principal products each contain two symmetrically equivalent O₂ units. Conway and co-workers^{17,18} had first reported the mass spectra of these two dimer ions, which they and later workers¹⁹ found to be bound by approximately 10 kcal/mol. Mass spectrometric studies have determined²⁰⁻²² that these two dimer ions play important roles in the chemistry of the lower ionosphere. Although M⁺O₄⁻ had previously been stabilized in an argon matrix,²³⁻²⁶ there were no previous observations of the spectrum of uncomplexed O₄⁻, nor had any discrete absorptions of O₄⁺ been detected. Indeed, these observations represented the first infrared spectroscopic detection of a dimer ion in a non-interactive environment.

<u>CO₄</u>. When both O₂ and CO₂ were present in the neon sample, three new infrared absorptions appeared which could be assigned²⁷ to vibrations of the CO₂ moiety in the CO₄⁻ molecular ion, known from mass spectrometric studies²⁸ to be bound by approximately 21 kcal/mol. The infrared spectrum demonstrated that this species possesses a planar O₂C··O₂⁻ structure, with the negative charge localized on the O₂ moiety.

 N_4^+ . Because the ionization potential of N₂ is 15.58 eV,²⁹ this molecule provides a severe test of the ionization capability of the experimental configuration used for these experiments. Although Knight and co-workers³⁰ had detected the electron spin resonance spectrum of N₄⁺, known from mass spectrometric studies³¹ to be bound by approximately 23 kcal/mol, in neon matrix experiments, they were not able to stabilize it using this discharge configuration. Nevertheless, when a Ne:N₂ sample was subjected to infrared study³² a weak,

sharp absorption with isotopic substitution behavior appropriate for assignment to N_4^+ appeared at 2237.6 cm⁻¹.

3. Nitrogen Oxide Ions

The ions derived from the nitrogen oxides are of potential importance in high energy processes involving the nitramines. The work on these important molecules is not yet complete, but two papers have been published reporting the results of studies on Ne:NO and Ne: N_2O samples.

Ions Derived from NO. Although the ionization potential of NO is only 9.264 eV,³³ the detection of NO⁺ has been difficult. In part, this is because of the ease of formation of the $(NO)_2^+$ dimer ion, known to be stable by about 13.8 kcal/mol.^{34,35} Nevertheless, the ground-state energy levels of gas-phase NO⁺ have been determined, and the infrared spectrum of this species has been observed in the hot air resulting from a high altitude nuclear detonation.³⁶ In the presently reported infrared studies of Ne:NO samples,³⁷ the NO⁺ absorption was identified at 2345.2 cm⁻¹, very near the gas-phase value of 2343.9 cm⁻¹ for $\Delta G(\frac{1}{2})$ of ground-state NO⁺. The most prominent infrared absorption, at 1619.2 cm⁻¹, was assigned to *trans*-ONNO⁻. The argon-matrix counterpart of this absorption has recently been identified³⁸ at 1593 cm⁻¹. The exceptionally large shift in this absorption in going from a neon to an argon matrix may be a consequence of the greater polarizability of argon. Other absorptions in this experimental system were attributed to *cis*-ONNO⁻ and, tentatively, to ONNO⁺.

Because there are no reports of the infrared spectra of dimer ions in the gas phase, the matrix shifts of these species, which possess anomalously weak bonds linking the two monomer units, cannot be assessed. However, several absorptions of the weakly bound neutral species

cis-ONNO and N_2O_3 , for which gas-phase spectral data are available, vere also present. For these two species, all of the observed neon-matrix shifts were less than 0.6%, well within the guidelines for neon-matrix shifts of molecules which do not possess unusually weak bonds.

Ions Derived from N₂Q. In experiments on Ne:N₂O samples,³⁹ the two stretching fundamentals of N_2O^+ were detected close to the gas-phase values determined in a study⁴⁰ of the emission spectrum of that species. The threshold for the detachment of O^- from N₂O⁻, the initial product of capture of the photoelectrons by N₂O, amounts to only 0.43 \pm 0.10 eV.⁴¹ For many years, it had been presumed that O⁻ attacks N₂O at the end N atom, despite a partial positive charge on the central N atom. However, the recent photoelectron spectroscopy study of Posey and Johnson⁴² indicated that three different $N_2O_2^-$ isomers exist. They suggested that O^- may also attack the central N atom, yielding a NNO₂⁻ intermediate. That intermediate may rearrange to the previously postulated ONNO⁻ structure, which was detected in the argon- and neon-matrix studies discussed above. Subsequent mass spectrometric studies^{43,44} of isotopically labelled N₂O support these conclusions. In an earlier matrix isolation study of the interaction of alkali metal atoms with an Ar:N₂O sample, Milligan and Jacox⁴⁵ assigned an infrared absorption near 1200 cm⁻¹ to NNO_2^- , produced by the reaction of O⁻ with N₂O. That assignment was confirmed both in the argon-matrix study of Hacaloglu et al.,³⁸ who sampled Ar:N₂O mixtures that had been passed through a chemical ionization source, and in the present neon-matrix study.³⁹ Two new infrared absorptions of NNO₂⁻ were detected in the neon-matrix study, making possible a more complete vibrational analysis which indicated that the NN bond of this product has approximately single bond character. Consistent with the exclusion of N_2O from the discharge region, very little trans-ONNO⁻ was stabilized in the neon-matrix experiments.

The observation of a product of the reaction of O^- with N₂O in the neon matrix opens the possibility of studying the products of the reaction of O^- with other molecules. Preliminary experiments have been conducted on the reaction of O^- with NO, with NO₂, and with O₂. Further studies of these and other systems are planned.

4. Ions Important in Combustion

<u>Ions Derived from CO</u>. In studies of the interaction of excited neon atoms and their resonance radiation with Ne:CO samples,⁴⁶ the ground-state vibrational fundamental of CO⁺ was observed approximately 10 cm⁻¹ from the gas-phase value.⁴⁷ As in the earlier electron spin resonance studies,⁴⁸⁻⁵⁰ evidence was also obtained for the stabilization of *trans*-OCCO⁺. In addition, two infrared absorptions of *trans*-OCCO⁻ were identified.

Ions Derived from C_2H_2 . Recently, studies have been conducted on the Ne: C_2H_2 system. In an earlier study⁵¹ of the interaction of excited argon atoms with an Ar: C_2H_2 sample, prominent absorptions of the HCC free radical dominated the spectrum. However, an absorption near 3106 cm⁻¹ behaved appropriately on carbon-13 isotopic substitution of the sample for assignment to a product with two equivalent carbon atoms. Since the ionization potential of C_2H_2 is 11.4 eV,³³ it would be energetically possible to form $C_2H_2^+$ in the argon-matrix system. In the corresponding Ne: C_2H_2 experiments, this peak shifted to 3137.6 cm⁻¹, very near the gas-phase band center recently determined in the laboratory of Oka⁵² for the ν_3 fundamental of $C_2H_2^+$, 3135.98 cm⁻¹. Isotopic substitution studies have confirmed the assignment of the neon-matrix absorption to $C_2H_2^+$. The relatively large shift in the argon-matrix absorption, presumably a consequence of polarization interactions with the argon matrix, emphasizes the importance of using a neon matrix for studies of the infrared spectra of molecular ions. In the neon-matrix study, an absorption at 1773 cm⁻¹ was tentatively attributed to the HCC⁻ anion. Although in the argon-matrix study a high yield of HCC had been obtained, very little HCC resulted from the 16.6-16.8 eV excitation of C_2H_2 in the present study.

B. Photodecomposition of Monomethylnitramine

In an important series of papers, Melius⁵³⁻⁵⁵ conducted a theoretical study of the thermochemistry and kinetics of the decomposition and combustion of the nitramines, using monomethylnitramine (MMN) and species derived from it as model compounds. A second major objective of Proposal 25664-CH was the use of MMN as a model compound for spectroscopic studies. It was hoped that experimental conditions might be found under which photodecomposition of MMN would lead to the stabilization of $H_2C=N-NO_2$, the monomer unit from which HMX and RDX are derived. Very little is known regarding the stability of that species, for which no spectral data have been reported. Determination of its spectrum would constitute a first $s_1 \not_2$ in the ultimate development of laser-based diagnostics which might probe its role in nitramine decomposition.

Since MMN has a vapor pressure amounting to about 25 Pa (approximately 0.2 torr) at room temperature, it was necessary to develop a special system for matrix sampling of it. A diagram of the sampling manifold is shown in Figure 1. The solid MMN was placed in a sample tube, which was attached to the manifold and evacuated. During the sampling, a controlled pressure of the matrix gas (neon) was maintained over the solid sample. In these experiments, this pressure was between 5000 and 10000 Pa (about 40 to 80 torr). The capacitance manometer head M2 provided a control signal to a servo-controlled variable leak. As the mixture flowed through the manually controlled variable leak into the cryogenic cell, the APPARATUS FOR SAMPLING LOW VAPOR PRESSURE MATERIALS



Figure 1

matrix gas was replenished from the matrix gas reservoir. The pressure drop in this reservoir, measured by capacitance manometer M1, indicated the amount of matrix material which had passed through the sampling manifold into the cryogenic cell, where the mixture is frozen onto the 4 K observation surface. If it is assumed that the equilibrium vapor pressure of MMN is maintained in the sample manifold, the Ne:MMN mole ratio of these experiments ranged from 300 to 500.

The absorption spectrum recorded between 750 and 3500 cm⁻¹ for the first sample deposited using this manifold is shown in Figure 2. As is indicated in Figure 2, most of the infrared absorptions can be assigned to H_2O , N_2O , and CH_3OH . The prominent CO_2 peak near 2350 cm⁻¹ is common to most matrix samples. Because the absorption coefficient of this CO_2 absorption is very large, it represents only a small amount of CO_2 in the deposit. The sharp peak near 1612 cm⁻¹, intermediate between two H_2O absorptions, represents a very small concentration of NO₂. This fundamental of NO₂ also has an exceptionally large absorption near 930 cm⁻¹ and that near 1612 cm⁻¹ lie close to absorptions of gas-phase MMN reported by Dakhis and co-workers, ⁵⁶ the very strong absorption of MMN near 1332 cm⁻¹ did not appear. Unassigned absorptions may possibly have been contributed by CH₃OH.

After the spectrum of Figure 2 had been obtained, approximately three times as much sample was added to the deposit, and the spectrum of Figure 3 was then recorded. As is evident from comparison of the intensities of relatively weak N_2O absorptions such as that near 2460 cm⁻¹ and the absorptions of singly ¹⁵N-substituted N_2O present in natural abundance, slightly





RES: 0.100 MMN000002.TRA

below the very strong 2225 cm⁻¹ N₂O peak, the amount of N₂O in the deposit approximately doubled. Moreover, ten new absorptions, marked in the spectrum of Figure 3 by filled circles, appeared. Among these is a relatively broad absorption at 1614 cm⁻¹, very near the sharp NO₂ absorption. In Table I, the positions of these absorptions are compared with the infrared absorptions of MMN reported by Dakhis and co-workers.⁵⁶ The agreement between the positions of the major neon-matrix absorptions and the gas-phase band centers of MMN is very close. As is common in the spectra of matrix-isolated species, there are some less prominent peaks within a few cm⁻¹ of the principal absorptions; these peaks are attributed to the presence of multiple trapping sites in the rare gas solid. Several of the MMN fundamentals were previously observed only for the solid material at 77 K. Because of the occurrence of relatively strong molecular interactions in the solid, the positions of the absorptions of polycrystalline material may be substantially shifted both from the gas-phase band centers and from the absorptions observed in rare gas matrices.

The difference in the composition of these two deposits is attributed to the occurrence of water-catalyzed decomposition of the first portion of the sample. On introduction to the sample tube, crystalline MMN holds an appreciable amount of adsorbed water, accounting for the very prominent water absorptions in the spectrum of Figure 2. Very recently, Melius⁵⁴ has predicted that the water-catalyzed decomposition of nitramines should lead to the formation of N₂O and of partly degraded chain structures containing -CH₂OH units. For MMN, this unit would be simplified to CH₃OH, which is seen. According to this proposed mechanism, H₂CO results from further chain degradation. Because for MMN there is no residual chain, H₂CO would not be expected to appear--and is not observed. Once the concentration of water in the

Table I

Comparison of the Absorptions (cm⁻¹) of Monomethylnitramine Observed in the Gas Phase^a and in a Neon Matrix

Gas	<u>Ne Matrix</u>
772	774.5wm
928	
1092	
1 097 ^b	1096.8wm
1177 ⁶	1132.0wm
1332	1332.6vs
1394	1390.2s
	1427.8wm
	1429.8m
1434 ^b	1432.1sh
1454 ^b	
1470 ^b	1479.8m
	1483.0sh
	1575.0wm
	1578.0wm
1614	1611.4vs
	3434.7wm
	3436.4wm
	3438.6wm
3438	3441.9ms

* Reference 56.

^b Polycrystalline sample measured at 77 K.

sample is reduced through its deposition with the initial decomposition products, the probability of undecomposed MMN reaching the cryogenic deposit increases. In subsequent experiments using this same portion of crystalline MMN, the absorptions of the decomposition products became less prominent, and the MMN absorptions predominated.

In a neon matrix, the threshold for the photodecomposition of MMN was observed near 260 nm. It is possible that photodecomposition of gas-phase MMN may occur at longer wavelengths but that cage recombination suppresses this photodecomposition process in the matrix. The absorptions which result on photodestruction of MMN are summarized in Table II. Definite assignment of relatively prominent absorptions to CH_4 and to cis-(NO)₂ can be made, indicating that the fragmentation

$$MMN + h\nu \rightarrow CH_4 + 2NO$$
(1)

is important. This overall process might result from an initial N-N cleavage

$$MMN + h\nu \rightarrow CH_3NH + NO_2$$
(1a).

In the matrix, the free radical products are likely to undergo cage recombination either to reform MMN or to form the nitrite:

$$CH_3NH + NO_2 \rightarrow CH_3NHONO$$
 (1b).

Other possible photodecomposition processes include HONO elimination

$$MMN + h\nu \rightarrow CH_3N \text{ (or } CH_2NH) + HONO$$
(2),

 H_2 elimination

$$MMN + h\nu \rightarrow CH_2 = N - NO_2$$
(3),

and (4) H atom elimination from either the C or the N atom. The H atoms produced in this last process could, in turn, attack other MMN molecules to give a variety of products.

Table II

Absorptions (cm⁻¹) Which Appear on 254 nm Irradiation of Monomethylnitramine Isolated in Solid Neon at 4 K

<u>cm⁻¹</u>	<u>Assignment</u>
700.8m	
869.1m	
873.2w	
874.3w	
912.0w	
934.4w	
949.3wm,-	
955.9wm,-	
974.1w	
1043.1w	
1067.6w	
1111.0wm	
1118.7sh	
1119.2wm	
1259.3vw	
1308.2m	CH ₄
1415.6wm	
1446.9m,-	
1494.6wm	
1502.3w	
1646.9wm	
1777.1m	cis-(NO) ₂
1777.9m	cis-(NO) ₂
1779.1m	cis-(NO) ₂
1834.5wm	cis-(NO) ₂
1836.6wm	cis-(NO) ₂

Table IIContinued			
<u>cm⁻¹</u>	Assignment		
1865.5wm			
1874.9wm,-	NO		
2234.5m,-			
2234.9m,-			
2834.8m,-			

The identification of most of the absorptions in Table II is uncertain. The weak absorption at 1043 cm⁻¹ may possibly be contributed by CH₃N.⁵⁷ Although there are several near coincidences with absorptions of CH₂NH,⁵⁸ the prominent 1348-cm⁻¹ CH₂NH absorption is missing. There is no evidence for the lowest energy rotamer of HONO, *trans*-HONO, but the absorptions at 869 and 1646 cm⁻¹ lie in the same spectral region as prominent absorptions of *cis*-HONO. There is no evidence for the formation of NO₂, HCN, H₂CO, N₂O, or CH₃OH on photolysis of the deposit.

In one experiment, a filter which excluded visible light from the sample but transmitted the very strong 254 nm mercury-arc radiation was used during photolysis of the sample. The product absorptions at 949.3, 955.9, 1446.9, 1874.9, 2234.5, 2234.9, and 2834.8 cm⁻¹, labelled with a minus sign in Table II, were relatively less intense in the resulting spectrum. The 1874.9 cm⁻¹ peak is readily assigned to NO, but the other peaks have not been assigned. The variation in the intensity of these peaks suggests that the primary photolysis product (or one of the primary photolysis products) is subject to photodestruction by visible light, leading to the formation of NO and of one or more other products which have infrared absorptions at the positions of the other peaks marked with the minus sign. The identification of NO suggests that the species which photolyzes on irradiation with visible light may be a nitrite.

In one experiment, the Ne:MMN sample was exposed to the 185 nm radiation passed by an interference filter from a microwave-powered low-pressure mercury arc lamp which was affixed to the cryogenic cell by a nitrogen-purged spacer. Photodecomposition was minimal, and products were not detected. In another experiment, the Ne:MMN sample was exposed to 122 nm H atom radiation during deposition. Complete degradation of the MMN resulted; only the infrared absorptions of H_2O , CO, and CO₂ were detected in the resulting sample. N₂ is expected also to have been present in the deposit, but it does not possess an infrared absorption.

In summary, the room temperature vapor over pure solid MMN can be sampled in a neon matrix without decomposition. In the presence of water, MMN decomposes into N₂O and CH₃OH, supporting the water-catalyzed nitramine decomposition mechanism recently proposed by Melius.⁵⁴ The absence of H₂CO is also consistent with that mechanism. The threshold for the photodecomposition of MMN in solid neon lies near 260 nm. Photofragmentation of MMN into CH₄ + 2NO occurs. Infrared absorptions of one or more other products also contribute to the spectrum of the photolyzed sample. There is evidence for secondary photodecomposition by visible light, leading to the formation of NO. Since NO is produced on photolysis of nitrites, it is quite possible that the detachment of NO₂ and its cage recombination to form a nitrite is an important process. It is noteworthy that cage recombination should also play an important role in the early stages of decomposition of solid nitramines.

C. Other Studies

A number of other experiments designed to lead to the stabilization of free radicals which are expected to play an important role in nitramine decomposition and combustion have been conducted. Two of these, plus a major data evaluation and compilation activity (not supported by the Army Research Office) are worthy of note.

1. Reaction of H with N_2O

It has been proposed⁵⁹ that the HNNO intermediate is important in the high temperature reaction of H atoms with N_2O . In experiments in which a Ne:N₂O sample was codeposited with a Ne:H₂ or Ne:D₂ mixture that had been passed through a microwave discharge, one infrared absorption which may have been contributed by the NH-stretching fundamental of HNNO and two possible absorptions of DNNO have been detected. Further experiments using isotopically substituted N₂O are planned and may help to clarify this identification.

2. Spectrum of HCC

The HCC free radical is ubiquitous in combustion systems. Although it had long been known to have an electronic transition in the near infrared, the formation of electronically excited HCC led to the appearance of quasicontinuous emission from the green spectral region to the mid-infrared. Several infrared absorption bands of HCC, observed at high resolution, have been analyzed, providing abundant evidence for extensive perturbation of energy levels associated with the near infrared electronic state by high vibrational energy levels of the ground state. As a part of work associated with an earlier Army Research Office Proposal (#21495-CH), Jacox and Olson⁵¹ reported a large number of bands in the first survey absorption spectrum of HCC over the 4000-8000-cm⁻¹ spectral region. In this study, HCC was isolated in solid argon, resulting in complete deactivation to the zero-point vibrational energy level. Therefore, all transitions of HCC observed in this study must originate in $\tilde{X}(000)$. Subsequent gas-phase studies, recently summarized by Yan and co-workers,⁶⁰ have extended higher into the near-infrared spectral region and have yielded band positions in good agreement with the argon-matrix studies.

In order to clarify the origin of a number of unassigned infrared absorptions in the argonmatrix study of HCC and to refine and extend the near infrared spectral measurements, a study of the spectrum of HCC in a neon matrix has been initiated. Several overtones and combination bands of HCC in the infrared spectral region have been assigned in this study, and there is promise of a partial band assignment in the mid-infrared. Because neon matrix deposits are much more transparent than are argon matrix ones, uncertainties in band observations between 6500 and 8000 cm⁻¹ have been removed. Moreover, measurements have been extended to 12000 cm⁻¹. Newly developed lasers may make possible the development of diagnostics for gasphase HCC in the 7000-12000 cm⁻¹ spectral region.

3. Vibrational and Electronic Energy Level Data

During the period of this proposal, two critically evaluated compilations of vibrational and electronic energy level data for small polyatomic transient molecules have appeared.^{3,58} While the publication of these two compilations was not supported by the U. S. Army Research Office, the material in them may be of interest to research workers concerned with the decomposition and combustion of energetic materials. Each of these publications presents vibrational and electronic energy level data for approximately 500 molecules. A number of somewhat less reactive molecules which are important in the study of energetic materials, including *cis*- and *trans*-HONO, H_2O_2 , IINCO, and HCNO, have been included in the more recent compilation.³

17

Publications

- "The Vibrational Spectra of Molecular Ions Isolated in Solid Neon. I. CO₂⁺ and CO₂⁻." M. E. Jacox and W. E. Thompson, J. Chem. Phys. <u>91</u>, 1410-1416 (1989).
- "The Production and Spectroscopy of Molecular Ions Isolated in Solid Neon." M. E. Jacox and W. E. Thompson, Res. Chem. Intermed. <u>12</u>, 33-56 (1989).
- "The Vibrational Spectra of Molecular Ions Isolated in Solid Neon. II. O_4^+ and O_4^- ." W. E. Thompson and M. E. Jacox, J. Chem. Phys. <u>91</u>, 3826-3837 (1989).
- "The Vibrational Spectra of Molecular Ions Isolated in Solid Neon. III. N_4^+ ." W. E. Thompson and M. E. Jacox, J. Chem. Phys. <u>93</u>, 3856-3862 (1990).
- "The Production and Spectroscopy of Small Polyatomic Molecular Ions Isolated in Solid Neon." M. E. Jacox and W. E. Thompson, High Temp. Sci. <u>28</u>, 225-234 (1990).
- "The Vibrational Spectra of Molecular Ions Isolated in Solid Neon. IV. NO⁺, NO⁻, ONNO⁺, and ONNO⁻." M. E. Jacox and W. E. Thompson, J. Chem. Phys. <u>93</u>, 7609-7621 (1990).
- "The Vibrational Spectra of Molecular Ions Isolated in Solid Neon. V. N₂O⁺ and NNO₂⁻." M. E. Jacox, J. Chem. Phys. <u>93</u>, 7622-7631 (1990).
- "The Vibrational Spectra of Molecular Ions Isolated in Solid Neon. VI. CO₄⁻." M. E. Jacox and W. E. Thompson, J. Phys. Chem. <u>95</u>, 2781-2787 (1991).

"The Vibrational Spectra of Molecular Ions Isolated in Solid Neon. VII. CO^+ , $C_2O_2^+$, and $C_2O_2^-$." W. E. Thompson and M. E. Jacox, J. Chem. Phys. <u>95</u>, (15 July 1991).

Participants in ARO Research

- Dr. Marilyn E. Jacox, Principal Investigator
- Dr. Warren E. Thompson, Guest Researcher (no salary charged to this project)

References

- 1. M. E. Jacox, J. Mol. Spectrosc. <u>113</u>, 286 (1985).
- 2. M. E. Jacox, J. Mol. Structure <u>157</u>, 43 (1987).
- 3. M. E. Jacox, J. Phys. Chem. Ref. Data <u>19</u>, 1387 (1990).
- 4. M. E. Jacox, Rev. Chem. Intermed. 2, 1 (1978).
- 5. L. Andrews, Ann. Rev. Phys. Chem. <u>30</u>, 79 (1979).
- 6. L. B. Knight, Jr., Acc. Chem. Res. <u>19</u>, 313 (1986).
- 7. K. Kawaguchi, C. Yamada, and E. Hirota, J. Chem. Phys. <u>82</u>, 1174 (1985).
- 8. M. E. Jacox and W. E. Thompson, J. Chem. Phys. <u>91</u>, 1410 (1989).
- 9. M. E. Jacox and D. E. Milligan, Chem. Phys. Lett. 28, 163 (1974).
- R. H. Hauge, J. L. Margrave, J. W. Kauffman, N. A. Rao, M. M. Konarski, J. P. Bell, and W. E. Billups, J. Chem. Soc., Chem. Commun., 1258 (1981).
- Z. H. Kafafi, R. H. Hauge, W. E. Billups, and J. L. Margrave, J. Am. Chem. Soc. <u>105</u>, 3886 (1983).
- 12. R. Teghil, B. Janis, and L. Bencivenni, Inorg. Chim. Acta <u>88</u>, 115 (1984).
- 13. L. Manceron, A. Loutellier, and J. P. Perchard, J. Mol. Struct. <u>129</u>, 115 (1985).
- Z. H. Kafafi, R. H. Hauge, W. E. Billups, and J. L. Margrave, Inorg. Chem. <u>23</u>, 177 (1984).

- L. Bencivenni, L. D'Alessio, F. Ramondo, and M. Pelino, Inorg. Chim. Acta <u>121</u>, 161 (1986).
- 16. W. E. Thompson and M. E. Jacox, J. Chem. Phys. <u>91</u>, 3826 (1989).
- 17. D. C. Conway and L. E. Nesbitt, J. Chem. Phys. <u>48</u>, 509 (1968).
- 18. J.-H. Yang and D. C. Conway, J. Chem. Phys. <u>40</u>, 1729 (1964).
- 19. K. Hiraoka, J. Chem. Phys. <u>89</u>, 3190 (1988).
- 20. G. R. Reid, Adv. At. Mol. Phys. <u>12</u>, 375 (1976).
- 21. E. E. Ferguson, F. C. Fehsenfeld, and D. L. Albritton, in *Gas Phase Ion Chemistry*, edited by M. T. Bowers (Academic, New York, 1979), Vol. 1, pp. 45-82.
- 22. F. Arnold and A. A. Viggiano, Planet. Space Sci. <u>30</u>, 1295 (1982).
- 23. L. Andrews, J. Phys. Chem. <u>73</u>, 3922 (1969).
- 24. L. Andrews, J. Chem. Phys. <u>54</u>, 4935 (1971).
- 25. M. E. Jacox and D. E. Milligan, Chem. Phys. Lett. <u>14</u>, 518 (1972).
- 26. R. R. Smardzewski and L. Andrews, J. Phys. Chem. <u>77</u>, 801 (1973).
- 27. M. E. Jacox and W. E. Thompson, J. Phys. Chem. <u>95</u>, 2781 (1991).
- 28. F. C. Fehsenfeld, D. L. Albritton, G. E. Streit, J. A. Davidson, C. J. Howard, and E. E. Ferguson, Atmos. Environ. <u>11</u>, 283 (1977).
- 29. R. E. Worley and F. A. Jenkins, Phys. Rev. <u>54</u>, 305 (1938).
- L. B. Knight, Jr., K. D. Johannessen, D. C. Cobranchi, E. A. Earl, D. Feller, and E.
 R. Davidson, J. Chem. Phys. <u>87</u>, 885 (1987).
- 31. K. Hiraoka and G. Nakajima, J. Chem. Phys. <u>88</u>, 7709 (1988).
- 32. W. E. Thompson and M. E. Jacox, J. Chem. Phys. <u>93</u>, 3856 (1990).

- S. G. Lias, J. E. Bartmess, J. F. Liebman, J. L. Holmes, R. D. Levin, and W. G. Mallard, J. Phys. Chem. Ref. Data <u>17</u>, Supplement No. 1 (1988).
- 34. C. Y. Ng, P. W. Tiedemann, B. H. Mahan, and Y. T. Lee, J. Chem. Phys. <u>66</u>, 3985 (1977).
- 35. S. H. Linn, Y. Ono, and C. Y. Ng, J. Chem. Phys. <u>74</u>, 3342 (1981).
- K.-P. Huber and G. Herzberg, Molecular Spectra and Molecular Structure. IV. Constants of Diatomic Molecules (Van Nostrand Reinhold, New York, 1979), pp. 481-483.
- 37. M. E. Jacox and W. E. Thompson, J. Chem. Phys. <u>93</u>, 7609 (1990).
- 38. J. Hacaloglu, S. Suzer, and L. Andrews, J. Phys. Chem. <u>94</u>, 1759 (1990).
- 39. M. E. Jacox, J. Chem. Phys. <u>93</u>, 7622 (1990).
- 40. J. H. Callomon and F. Creutzberg, Phil. Trans. Roy. Soc. London A277, 157 (1974).
- 41. D. G. Hopper, A. C. Wahl, R. L. C. Wu, and T. O. Tiernan, J. Chem. Phys. <u>65</u>, 5474 (1976).
- 42. L. A. Posey and M. A. Johnson, J. Chem. Phys. <u>88</u>, 5383 (1988).
- 43. S. E. Barlow and V. M. Bierbaum, J. Chem. Phys. <u>92</u>, 3442 (1990).
- 44. R. A. Morris, A. A. Viggiano, and J. F. Paulson, J. Chem. Phys. <u>92</u>, 3448 (1990).
- 45. D. E. Milligan and M. E. Jacox, J. Chem. Phys. <u>55</u>, 3404 (1971).
- 46. W. E. Thompson and M. E. Jacox, J. Chem. Phys. <u>95</u>, (15 July 1991).
- 47. Reference 36, p. 170.
- 48. L. B. Knight, Jr., and J. Steadman, J. Chem. Phys. <u>77</u>, 1750 (1982).
- 49. L. B. Knight, Jr., and J. Steadman, J. Am. Chem. Soc. <u>106</u>, 900 (1982).

- 50. L. B. Knight, Jr., J. Stadman, P. K. Miller, D. E. Bowman, E. R. Davidson, and D. Feller, J. Chem. Phys. <u>80</u>, 4593 (1984).
- 51. M. E. Jacox and W. B. Olson, J. Chem. Phys. <u>86</u>, 3134 (1987).
- 52. M. W. Crofton, M.-F. Jagod, B. D. Rehfuss, and T. Oka, J. Chem. Phys. <u>86</u>, 3755 (1987).
- 53. C. F. Melius and J. S. Binkley, Proc. 21st Internatl. Sympos. on Combustion, pp. 1953-1963 (1986).
- C. F. Melius, "Thermochemical Modeling: I. Application to Decomposition of Energetic Materials," in *Chemistry and Physics of Energetic Materials*, S. N. Bulusu, Ed., pp. 21-49 (Kluwer Academic Publishers, Dordrecht, 1990).
- C. F. Melius, "Thermochemical Modeling: II. Application to Ignition and Combustion of Energetic Materials," in *Chemistry and Physics of Energetic Materials*, S. N. Bulusu, Ed., pp. 51-78 (Kluwer Academic Publishers, Dordrecht, 1990).
- 56. M. I. Dakhis, V. G. Dashevsky, and V. G. Avakyan, J. Mol. Struct. <u>13</u>, 339 (1972).
- 57. R. F. Ferrante, J. Chem. Phys. <u>86</u>, 25 (1987).
- 58. M. E. Jacox, J. Phys. Chem. Ref. Data <u>17</u>, 269 (1988).
- 59. P. Marshall, A. Fontijn, and C. F. Melius, J. Chem. Phys. <u>86</u>, 5540 (1987).
- 60. W.-B. Yan, H. E. Warner, and T. Amano, J. Chem. Phys. <u>94</u>, 1712 (1991).